

BILL HISTORY FOR SENATE BILL 241 (LRB -2552)

An Act to repeal 118.153 (1) (a) 1., 118.153 (2) (b) 2. and 118.153 (3) (a) (intro.); to renumber and amend 118.153 (2) (b) 1.; to amend 118.153 (title), 118.153 (1) (a) (intro.), 118.153 (3) (a) 2., 118.153 (3) (b), 118.153 (4) (c) 3. and 5. and 118.153 (6); to repeal and recreate 118.153 (5); and to create 118.153 (1) (a) 5. of the statutes; relating to: programs for children at risk of not graduating from high school. (FE)

1999

09-28. S. Introduced by **Joint Legislative Council**.

09-28. S. Read first time and referred to committee on Education 272

11-10. S. Fiscal estimate received.

2000

01-26. S. Public hearing held.

01-26. S. Executive action taken.

02-01. S. Report introduction and adoption of Senate amendment 1 recommended by committee on Education, Ayes 11, Noes 0 (**LRB a1088**) 408

02-01. S. Report passage as amended recommended by committee on Education, Ayes 11, Noes 0 408

02-01. S. Available for scheduling.

02-01. S. Read a second time 412

02-01. S. Senate amendment 1 **adopted** 412

02-01. S. Ordered to a third reading 412

02-01. S. Rules suspended 412

02-01. S. Read a third time and **passed** 412

02-01. S. Ordered immediately messaged 413

02-08. A. Received from Senate 645

02-08. A. Read first time and referred to committee on Education 646

02-22. A. Public hearing held.

02-22. A. Executive action taken.

02-29. A. Report concurrence recommended by committee on Education, Ayes 15, Noes 0 685

02-29. A. Referred to committee on Rules 685

03-09. A. Placed on calendar 3-14-2000 by committee on Rules.

03-14. A. Read a second time 751

03-14. A. Ordered to a third reading 751

03-14. A. Rules suspended 751

03-14. A. Read a third time and **concurred in** 751

03-14. A. Ordered immediately messaged 751

03-14. S. Received from Assembly concurred in.

**1999
ENROLLED BILL**

99en SB-241

ADOPTED DOCUMENTS:

Orig **Engr** **SubAmdt**

99 - 25521 / 1

Amendments to above (if none, write "NONE"): SA1

Corrections - show date (if none, write "NONE"): none

Topic

Programs for children at risk
if not graduating from high school

3/15/00

Date

Rita / Dep / cm

Enrolling Drafter

ELECTRONIC PROCEDURE:

Follow automatic or manual enrolling procedures in *TEXT2000 Reference Guide*, Document Specific Procedures, Ch. 20, Engrossing and Enrolling

DISTRIBUTION:

HOUSE OF ORIGIN:

- 11 copies plus bill jacket
- Secretary of State's envelope containing 4 copies plus newspaper notice

REVISOR OF STATUTES:

- 5 copies

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION:

- 2 copies

LRB:

- Drafting file original
- Drafting attorney 1 copy
- Legal section editors 1 copy each
- Reference section 1 copy
- Bill index librarian 1 copy

1999 SENATE BILL 241

September 28, 1999 - Introduced by JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. Referred to Committee on Education.

keep LC notes

1 **AN ACT to repeal** 118.153 (1) (a) 1., 118.153 (2) (b) 2. and 118.153 (3) (a) (intro.);
2 **to renumber and amend** 118.153 (2) (b) 1.; **to amend** 118.153 (title), 118.153
3 (1) (a) (intro.), 118.153 (3) (a) 2., 118.153 (3) (b), 118.153 (4) (c) 3. and 5. and
4 118.153 (6); **to repeal and recreate** 118.153 (5); and **to create** 118.153 (1) (a)
5 5. of the statutes; **relating to:** programs for children at risk of not graduating
6 from high school.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

This bill is explained in the NOTE provided by the joint legislative council in the bill.

For further information see the **state and local** fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

PREFATORY NOTE: This bill was prepared for the joint legislative council's special committee on the children at risk program. It contains a series of changes to the current children-at-risk statute to focus funding on specific programs designed to serve students at risk of not graduating from high school. The bill does not increase the current funding for the program despite the conclusion of the committee that the need for such programs

SENATE BILL 241

far outpaces the funding allocated. The bill reflects the approach of refocusing the current funding on specific programs with measurable goals with the anticipation that if the results warrant additional funding, those will be provided in the future. The bill makes the following modifications in the current law:

1. The name of the program is changed from “children at risk” to “children at risk of not graduating from high school” to reflect the refocusing of the program.

2. The definition of children at risk is changed. Currently “children at risk” is defined under s. 118.153 (1) (a) to mean pupils in grades 5 to 12 who are one or more years behind their age group in the number of high school credits attained, or 2 or more years behind their age group in basic skill levels, and are also one or more of the following: (a) dropouts; (b) habitual truants; (c) parents; or (d) adjudicated delinquents. The bill revises this definition to provide that children at risk means pupils in grades 5 to 12 who are at risk of not graduating from high school because they failed the high school graduation exam administered under s. 118.30 (1m) (d), are dropouts, or are 2 or more of the following:

a. One or more years behind their age group in the number of high school credits attained.

b. Two or more years behind their age group and basic skill levels.

c. Habitual truants.

d. Parents.

e. Adjudicated delinquents.

f. Eighth grade pupils whose score in each subject area on the examination administered under s. 118.30 (1m) (am) 1. was below the basic level, 8th grade pupils who failed the examination under s. 118.30 (1m) (am) 2. and 8th grade pupils who failed to be promoted to the 9th grade.

3. The funding for the children-at-risk program, although retained at the current level of \$3.5 million annually, is changed to require participating school districts to specify the amount given to each program based on the ability of that program to meet specified statutory objectives. The bill requires a school board receiving funds to give preference in allocating those funds to programs for children at risk provided by alternative schools, charter schools, schools within schools and private, nonprofit, nonsectarian agencies located in the school district or within 5 miles of the boundaries of the school district. The bill provides a specific definition of the terms “alternative school” and “school within a school”. An “alternative school” is defined to mean a public school that has at least 30 pupils and no more than 250 pupils, has a separate administrator or teacher in charge of the school and offers a nontraditional curriculum. A “school within a school” is defined to mean a school that has at least 30 pupils and no more than 250 pupils, has a separate administrator or teacher in charge of the school and is housed in the space specifically dedicated to it in a public school.

4. Under current law, any school that had 50 or more dropouts and a dropout rate exceeding 5% of its total enrollment is required to apply to the state superintendent for children-at-risk aid. The bill makes participation by a school district *permissive* for any school district that had **30** or more dropouts *or* a dropout rate that exceeded 5% of its total enrollment in the previous school year.

5. Under current statutes, the program for children at risk must be designed to allow pupils enrolled to meet high school graduation requirements under s. 118.33. The statutes also currently provide that the school board of the school district operating under ch. 119 (Milwaukee) shall ensure that there are at least 40 pupils and no more than 200 pupils in each program and that a separate administrator or teacher is in charge of each program. The bill modifies the allowable size of the Milwaukee programs to require at least 30 pupils and no more than 250 pupils in each program.

6. Under current law, schools are entitled to receive an additional 10% of the school district's average per pupil aids for each pupil that meets at least 3 of the following statutory objectives:

SENATE BILL 241

- a. The pupil's attendance was at least 70%.
- b. The pupil remained in school.
- c. The pupil, if a high school senior, received a high school diploma.
- d. The pupil earned at least 4.5 academic credits or a prorated number of credits if the pupil was enrolled in the program for less than the entire school year.
- e. The pupil demonstrated, on standardized tests or other appropriate measures, at least one month's gain in reading and mathematics for each month of enrollment.

The bill modifies item c., above, by adding additional language providing that the criteria would also be met if the pupil has passed the high school graduation examination administered under s. 118.30 (1m) (d). The bill also amends item e., above, to provide that the pupil has demonstrated on standardized tests or other appropriate measures a gain in reading and mathematics commensurate with the duration of his or her enrollment in the program. Each pupil is still required to achieve at least 3 of the specified objectives.

7. Current law requires the legislative audit bureau to conduct an audit every 2 years regarding the eligibility, performance criteria and state aid payments under the program. This bill provides that by January 1, 2005, the legislative audit bureau shall audit the programs funded under the children-at-risk program to determine the extent to which they meet the objectives specified under s. 118.153 (4) (c), discussed above.

1 **SECTION 1.** 118.153 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 **118.153 (title) Children at risk of not graduating from high school.**

3 **SECTION 2.** 118.153 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 118.153 (1) (a) (intro.) "Children at risk" means pupils in grades 5 to 12 who
5 are ~~one~~ at risk of not graduating from high school because they failed the high school
6 graduation examination administered under s. 118.30 (1m) (d), are dropouts, or are
7 2 or more of the following:

8 1m. One or more years behind their age group in the number of high school
9 credits attained, ~~or 2.~~

10 2. Two or more years behind their age group in basic skill levels, ~~and are also~~
11 ~~one or more of the following:~~

12 **SECTION 3.** 118.153 (1) (a) 1. of the statutes is repealed.

13 **SECTION 4.** 118.153 (1) (a) 5. of the statutes is created to read:

14 118.153 (1) (a) 5. Eighth grade pupils whose score in each subject area on the
15 examination administered under s. 118.30 (1m) (am) 1. was below the basic level, 8th

SENATE BILL 241**SECTION 4**

1 grade pupils who failed the examination administered under s. 118.30 (1m) (am) 2.,
2 and 8th grade pupils who failed to be promoted to the 9th grade.

3 **SECTION 5.** 118.153 (2) (b) 1. of the statutes is renumbered 118.153 (2) (b) and
4 amended to read:

5 118.153 (2) (b) If in the previous school year a school district had ~~50~~ 30 or more
6 dropouts ~~and or~~ a dropout rate exceeding 5% of its total high school enrollment, the
7 school board ~~shall~~ may apply to the state superintendent for aid under this section.

8 **SECTION 6.** 118.153 (2) (b) 2. of the statutes is repealed.

9 **SECTION 7.** 118.153 (3) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is repealed.

10 **SECTION 8.** 118.153 (3) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

11 118.153 (3) (a) 2. Upon request of a pupil who is a child at risk or the pupil's
12 parent or guardian, a school board described under subd. 1. shall enroll the pupil in
13 the program for children at risk. If the school board makes available more than one
14 program for children at risk, the school board shall enroll the pupil in the program
15 selected by the pupil's parent or guardian if the pupil meets the prerequisites for that
16 program. If there is no space in that program for the pupil, the school board of the
17 school district operating under ch. 119 shall place the pupil's name on a waiting list
18 for that program and offer the pupil ~~an alternative~~ another program for children at
19 risk until space in the requested program becomes available.

20 **SECTION 9.** 118.153 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 118.153 (3) (b) A program for children at risk shall be designed to allow the
22 pupils enrolled to meet high school graduation requirements under s. 118.33. The
23 school board of the school district operating under ch. 119 shall ensure that there are
24 at least ~~40~~ 30 pupils and no more than ~~200~~ 250 pupils in each program and that a
25 separate administrator or teacher is in charge of each program.

SENATE BILL 241

1 **SECTION 10.** 118.153 (4) (c) 3. and 5. of the statutes are amended to read:

2 118.153 (4) (c) 3. The pupil, if a high school senior, received a high school
3 diploma or passed the high school graduation examination administered under s.
4 118.30 (1m) (d).

5 5. The pupil has demonstrated, on standardized tests or other appropriate
6 measures, ~~at least one month's~~ a gain in reading and mathematics ~~for each month~~
7 ~~of~~ commensurate with the duration of his or her enrollment in the program.

8 **SECTION 11.** 118.153 (5) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

9 118.153 (5) (a) In this subsection:

10 1. "Alternative school" means a public school that has at least 30 pupils and no
11 more than 250 pupils, has a separate administrator or teacher in charge of the school
12 and offers a nontraditional curriculum.

13 2. "School within a school" means a school that has at least 30 pupils and no
14 more than 250 pupils, has a separate administrator or teacher in charge of the school
15 and is housed in a space specifically dedicated to it in a public school.

16 (b) Subject to sub. (3) (c) 3., a school board receiving funds under this section
17 shall provide a specific sum to each program for children at risk in which pupils
18 enrolled in the school district are enrolled based on the ability of the program to meet
19 the objectives under sub. (4) (c).

20 (c) A school board receiving funds under this section shall give preference in
21 allocating those funds to programs for children at risk provided by alternative
22 schools, charter schools, schools within schools and agencies identified under sub. (3)
23 (c) 1.

24 **SECTION 12.** 118.153 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

SENATE BILL 241

SECTION 12

1 118.153 (6) ~~Biennially~~ By January 1, 2005, the legislative audit bureau shall
2 audit ~~school district eligibility, performance criteria and state aid payments~~
3 programs funded under this section to determine the extent to which they meet the
4 objectives under sub. (4) (c).

5

(END)

6-4 (SAI) ✓

**SENATE AMENDMENT 1,
TO 1999 SENATE BILL 241**

February 1, 2000 - Offered by COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION.

1 At the locations indicated, amend the bill as follows:

2 1. Page 6, line 4: after that line insert:

3 **SECTION 13. Initial applicability.**

4 (1) The treatment of section 118.153 (4) (c) 3. and 5. of the statutes first applies
5 to the report due in August 2001 and to state aid paid in the 2001-02 school year.

6 **SECTION 14. Effective date.**

7 (1) This act takes effect on July 1, 2000.

8 (END)

6-4